FAHP News, April 11, 2016

The Smoke Stack at the Big Mill: Locals in Yorklyn referred to the main NVF fiber mill,
much of which has now been demolished, as the “big mill.” This was to distinguish it from the
Marshall Brothers paper mill, the snuff mills, and the tape mill. About 2/3 of the big mill was
built in 1911 and 1912, the centerpiece of which was the essential yet ornamental stack nearly
150 feet high.

Coal-fired boilers required tall stacks for proper draft, and the huge boilers and their fireboxes
below turned out a high volume of steam to run the steam engines and heat the dryers that were
essential to the manufacture of paper and vulcanized fiber. A large steam shovel with a bucket
called a “clam shell” moved the coal from under the railroad’s coal tipple to a pile just outside
the boiler room. Most of the stacks built for expansion of the industrial revolution in the 19th
century were of the rectangular brick design, similar to house chimneys except in size and
height. Shortly after 1900, however, round and somewhat ornamental stacks were becoming
popular, often built with yellow-tan bricks with a decorative pattern of irregular brown bricks at
the top. Such was the stack at the big mill. This mill was about half complete when Israel
Marshall died in June 1911. When the stack was completed the next year, an American flag was
flown from the top to signal the end of construction and the beginning of the greatly expanded
operation. I have tried to research how scaffolding could be built in 1912 to lay bricks 150 from
the ground, and I have deduced that there would not have been scaffolding but rather a seat and
ropes around the stack on which the mason could sit in the manner used by linemen on electric
poles before modern hydraulic platforms lifted them to the necessary height.

The coal-burning days lasted until about 1960. A lot of black coal smoke came out the top of
the stack for nearly 50 years. My father used to say that if the smoke went straight up, it meant
good weather (obviously very light wind). When there was a breeze, the prevailing wind
direction was from the west. The clothes line at Auburn Heights was not negatively impacted as
much as those on Gun Club Hill. People trying to find the Yorklyn Gun Club who were not
familiar with our back roads could go toward the smoke and know they would soon reach their
destination. Shooters at the Gun Club, at about the same level with the top of the stack, would
sometimes claim they had missed a target because it got lost in the smoke.

As oil succeeded coal as fuel to make steam, the stack did not need to be as high to give enough
draft, so, as the ornamental top deteriorated, it was simply removed. and the stack was lowered.
This occurred at least twice in the later years of NVF operation, so at the time the mills closed
in 2008, it was probably 120 feet tall.

Several of us hoped the stack could be saved as a symbol of what had been in a prosperous
manufacturing town of the 20th century, but we were told this was not possible because of the
massive ground contamination and the clean-up required. With demolition of the surrounding
buildings, the stack started to list, and this week it is being torn down for good. Like the steam
whistles that blew in Yorklyn morning, noon, and “quitting time,” the century-old stack is a
thing of the past.



Work Report: On Tuesday, April 5, 16 volunteers turned out, as follows: Jerry Lucas (in
charge), Ted Kamen, Dennis Dragon, Bob Jordan, John Schubel, Brent McDougall, Tom
Marshall, John Bacino, Anne Cleary, Dave Leon, Mike Ciosek, Tom Sandbrook, Mark
Bodenstab, Jerry Novak, Mac Taylor, and Jay Williams. In addition Rose Ann Hoover, Steve
Glazier, Jonathan Rickerman, and possibly others attended the meeting to discuss Train Day
that took place in the office.

On the ’37 Packard, the ignition switch was removed and disassembled. On the Model 735, the
hood was put on and the car moved to the museum. The pilot was worked on but is still not
acceptable. The Model H-5 was towed to the upper garage for installation of its newly rebuilt
engine. The seat and water tank were removed and the right perch pole detached to allow the
engine to be moved into place.

Some heavier-gauge wiring was installed on the Lionel train layout. The basement of the shop,
now called the “Engine House,” was cleaned in preparation for the Volunteer Open House,
April 9.

On Wednesday, April 6, six volunteers answered the call, viz: Tom Marshall (in charge),
Richard Bernard, Jeff Kennard, Dave Leon, Jerry Novak, and Mike Ciosek.

On the ’37 Packard, it is believed that a new wire can be run through the flexible metal housing
to the ignition switch, and the wire is on hand to do so. The rear of the Model 740 was checked
over, all bolts on the engine cover and the differential case were tightened, oil level in the
engine case was checked, and everything under the rear thoroughly cleaned. The fuel filter near
the tank was choked, so this was cleaned and five gallons of kerosene was put in the tank.

More railroad ties were installed on the double-tracked section of the Auburn Valley, outside
track. The pilot for the 735 was re-worked but is still not satisfactory.

On Thursday, April 7, nine volunteers attended the session, as follows: Bill Schwoebel (in
charge), Tom Marshall, Ted Kamen, Jim Personti, Geoff Fallows, Lou Mandich, Devon Hall,
Bob Stransky and Dave Stransky.

The engine for the Model H-5 was installed in the car, but final adjustments are still required.
The pilot on the Model CX, long troublesome like the one on the Model 735, was finally lit
with satisfaction,and all appears to be good. The pin may need filing to make the pilot slightly
stronger.

On the Model T Ford, items stored under the back seat were inventoried. It was discovered that
charger wiring is to the battery under the front seat, needed only when the electric starter is used
to eliminate cranking. This was an after-market feature on Model Ts of this period (1914).



